
 PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL 
 STUDY SESSION  
 TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 17, 2009 
 PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
 
MINUTES OF THE STUDY SESSION MEETING OF THE PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL held 
on NOVEMBER 17, 2009 in the COUNCIL CHAMBERS located at CITY HALL, 201 SOUTH 
CORTEZ STREET, Prescott, Arizona. 
 
   

  CALL TO ORDER 
   
 Mayor Wilson called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 
 

 INTRODUCTIONS    
 

  INVOCATION: Pastor Eunice Webb, Genesis 
 
    Pastor Webb gave the invocation. 
                   

  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Mayor Wilson 
 
 Mayor Wilson led the Council and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
  

  ROLL CALL:   
 
  PRESENT:     ABSENT: 
     

Mayor Wilson    None 
Councilman Bell    
Councilman Lamerson   
Councilwoman Lopas   

  Councilman Luzius 
  Councilman Roecker 

Councilwoman Suttles 
 
 

 SUMMARY OF CURRENT OR RECENT EVENTS  
    

Mr. Norwood noted that there had been some interest in his going to work for 
another city. That city was going to vote that night; however, he called the Mayor in 
Texas and withdrew his name.  After a weekend there, he found Prescott to be the 
place for him and his family.  

 
 
 



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 2 
 
I. PROCLAMATION 
 
 A. December 1, 2009 as World AIDS Day 
    

Mayor Wilson read the proclamation and presented it to Don Sullivan and 
Kevin Keighron of Northland Cars. 

 
Mr. Sullivan thanked the Mayor and Council for their support of Northland 
Cares and thanked Mr. Norwood for staying in Prescott. He said that 
Northland Cares is an HIV clinic in town and they treat about 200 patients. 
There is an estimate of about 1200 people in Northern Arizona who have 
AIDS. They have great doctors and depend a lot on federal grants. On the 
Friday of Thanksgiving week, they will have a movie for young people at the 
Prescott Methodist Church called The AIDS Quilt. There will be a band at the 
Armory on Saturday. Coyote Joes will have a fund raiser.  There will be an 
Open House at Northland Cares. He invited the Council and all of the public 
to join them at their activities. 

 
II. PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Update by Jim Holt on the Big Chino Project. 
   

Mr. Holt said that Black & Veatch is continuing to coordinate the right of way 
applications with the Arizona State Land Department. They are hopeful that 
they will be resolved within the next year. 

 
Black & Veatch is also working on design adjustments for the pipeline.  They 
are in relationship to accommodate property owners. If they have constructed 
a structure on their property since the original alignment of the pipeline, they 
are trying to work with them to recognize those structures. 

 
Black & Veatch is compiling the final design documents which are needed for 
permit approval applications. They are also the final plans used with Arizona 
Department of Transportation, Arizona Department of Environmental Quality, 
Yavapai County and Chino Valley.   

 
Black & Veatch is also working on some modifications to the intermediate 
pump station and reservoir site. The station was intended to be constructed 
after or, at the same time as they were doing modifications to the Chino 
Valley Water Production Facility.  They need to make sure it is compatible 
with their existing pumps. He said they need to complete some well field 
design. 

 
Regarding easement acquisitions, they began working with the team in 
March to 2008. Those team members included Yavapai Title, Tierra Right of 
Way Services, Universal Field Services and Briggs Appraisal and Consulting. 



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 3 
 

Consulting. Through November 2009, just over 24% of all the easements had 
been acquired. 

 
Regarding Modification of the City’s designation of assured water supply; 
Council talked to him several years ago about an authorization, with respect 
to this project, from Arizona Department of Water Resources. It was through 
that vehicle of modification of their designation that they were obtaining that 
authorization. The application with the Department of Water Resources was 
filed in October 2007, and that concluded two years worth of work.  

 
In November 2008, the Department of Water Resources issued a preliminary 
decision and order with regard to that application. They awarded 8,067 acre 
feet of water to the City of Prescott on an annual basis.  Objections were filed 
to that preliminary decision. During February, April and June of 2009, 
hearings were conducted by the Office of Administrative Hearings. During the 
8 days of hearings, there were 22 witnesses and over 600 exhibits. In 
October of this year the Administrative Law Judge issued his 
recommendations. He believed the City of Prescott was entitled to 8,567 acre 
feet of water on an annual basis. They were anticipating that, no later than 
Friday after Thanksgiving, the Arizona Department of Water Recourses 
would issue its final order. That will have completed a four year process 
regarding entitlement.  He is confident that the decision will be positive. 

    
There were five issues raised during the hearing phase. 1) Whether the 
water proposed to be imported into the Prescott Active Management Area 
would be physically, legally and continuously available for 100 years; 
2) Whether the proposed transportation of water by the City complies with 
Title 45-555E, which is the statute that awards City entitlement to the Big 
Chino sub basin; 3) Whether the City of Prescott demonstrated the financial 
capabilities to construct water facilities required to transport the water from 
the Big Chino into the City of Prescott; 4) Whether the Arizona Department of 
Water Resources properly calculated the amount of water that the City was 
entitled; and 5) Whether or not the Department of Water Resources was 
required to consider proposed, reported impacts on the Verde River by the 
proposed transportation ground water.  

 
He said that the Hearing Officer concluded that the Arizona Department of 
Water Resources properly decided on all of the matters. The Administrative 
Law Judge also believed that the Arizona Department of Water Resources 
improperly excluded 500 acre feet of water from the Central Arizona Project 
to the Yavapai Prescott Indian Tribe.   

    



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 4 
 

There were several conclusions of law that the law judge identified in his 60-
page opinion. The appellants had not met the burden of proof that A) The 
City of Prescott  would be pumping sub-flow to the City of Prescott; B) 
Prescott’s pumping would violate the Endangered Species Act; C) Pumping 
would violate the Prescott Yavapai Indian Tribe; D) The effects of climate 
change would prevent the City of Prescott from pumping water that meets 
assured water supply requirements; E) Had not shown that the water 
proposed by the City of Prescott would not be physically, legally and 
continuously available because of the pumping of ground water by others; 
and finally, F) The Arizona Department of Water Resources erred in its 
application in any of the assured water supply statutes. 

 
Regarding the exploration of the Public Private Partnership for procurement 
of the project; during a joint City Council session with Prescott Valley last 
year, the councils directed staff to explore the possibility of a Public Private 
Partnership. In September 2008, the communities released a statement 
soliciting expressions of interest; there were 13 submittals. In October of 
2008 they had a second joint City Council session. They had some 
presentations and discussions on Public Private Partnership.  

 
In December 2008, invitations were sent to the 13 firms who had responded. 
They were asked to come to Prescott to meet with elected officials and staff 
members.  In January 2009, nine of those firms came to Prescott. In April 
2009, there was a third joint council session. Staff members were directed to 
secure the advisory services of financial, legal and technical advisors that 
were experienced in Public Private Partnerships to be issued a solicitation for 
statements of qualification for advisory services. In August 2009, there were 
33 firms who had responded; 16 firms were interested in providing financial 
advisory services, 11 in legal services, 5 in technical services and 1 firm 
offered both financial and technical services. 

 
In November 2009, they conducted interviews with five of the highest rated 
firms. They are now working through the final process to identify the top rated 
firms with whom they started negotiations. Their belief is that the financial 
partner is the one to have on board first. They would like to get them 
modeling the feasibility and help them with the selection of the other two. 

   
Councilman Luzius asked if the Council would vote once they determined 
who the highest ranked prospect was. Mr. Holt said that once the selection is 
made, he would then bring the contract to the City Council. 

     



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 5 
 

Regarding the expenditures to date through October 2009; they have spent 
just over $35.5 million on the project; 65% of that has been related to land, 
23% has been related to design and 6% to hydrology. The City of Prescott’s 
share is $19.2 million and Prescott Valley’s share is $16.3 million. 

 
The cost estimate for the project as of March 2009 was $132.6 million after 
excluding the cost of the intermediate pump station and reservoir site north of 
the City of Prescott. That is infrastructure that is deemed to be critical. 
Regardless of whether they pump water to the active management area, they 
still need to invest in that intermediate pump station for the existing pumping 
of water for the existing transportation of water from the Little Chino pump 
station. 

   
Councilman Luzius asked what the cost was of the intermediated pump 
station. Mr. Holt replied $29.7 million. 

 
Councilman Lamerson asked if they needed the same pump station if they 
did not pump from the Big Chino. Mr. Holt said that the intermediate pump 
station is critical infrastructure, regardless of whether they pump water from 
the Big Chino sub basin. The infrastructure the City currently uses between 
the water production facility in Chino Valley and the City service area within 
the City of Prescott needs the infrastructure to relieve existing pressures on 
the water lines that are currently delivering water into the City of Prescott.    

    
Mayor Wilson said that the pressure is so high; they are at risk of rupturing a 
line. 

    
Councilman Luzius asked if there was an abandoned pump station in the 
Sandretto area and what its purpose was. Mr. Holt said that there was a 
pump station that was constructed. They did an analysis for City Council that 
retraced steps on how it was designed and what it was intended to do why it 
does not work for them today. He can make that research available. 

    
Regarding the Arizona Department of Water Resources budget; in an effort 
for Department of Water Resources to address the second of two 15% 
reductions in budgets, the department is proposing the elimination of remote 
offices in the Active Management Areas. They would eliminate the offices in 
Nogales, Tucson, Casa Grande and Prescott. That had some negative 
consequences for the City of Prescott. He hopes they will find other ways to 
achieve those budget reductions without closing the Prescott office.  

    



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 6 
 

He had been working with Craig McConnell, setting up a number of briefings 
and coordinating calendars. They are making sure they can accommodate a 
smooth transition.   
    
This was his last update to the City Council.  He was grateful for their support 
and feels that they have accomplished a great deal in a short period of time.  
He thanked them for the opportunity to serve them and the City of Prescott. 

 
Councilman Luzius wished him well. Mayor Wilson said that everyone wants 
to wish him well.   

 
B.   Annual Presentation by the Prescott Frontier Days World’s Oldest Rodeo. 

    
Carlo Pastore, President of Prescott Frontier Days. He read the letter that 
had been submitted to Council, Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part 
hereof, and showed a PowerPoint presentation which addressed the 
following: 

   
THE 122nd ANNUAL EVENT HIGHLIGHTS 

       
THE FOUR GENERATIONS OF COWBOY PARTICIPANTS 

    
REVENUES VS. EXPENDITURES 

    
OVERALL TICKET SALES AND BREAKDOWN 

   
SPONSORSHIP  

    
PRESCOTT FRINTIER DAYS INVESTMENT 

   
YEAR-ROUND ATTENDEES  

    
THE ECONOMIC ENGINE 

    
MILLER VALLEY ROAD BILLBOARD 

    
COWBOY CAPITAL OF THE AMERICAN WEST 

     
NEXT 

   
FIRST 2010 AD TO APPEAR IN A FEW MONTHS 

    
Councilwoman Suttles asked Mr. Pastore to highlight some of the uses for 
the rodeo grounds. 



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 7 
 
 

Mr. Pastore said that they have high school events. Two Junior Rodeo 
events brought in over 4,000 people over two different weekends. The high 
school rodeo had over 700 contestants. They do 4H events and a lot of 
ropings. They do the Equifex event which is an Olsen’s Grains event that 
brings in people from all over the state, averaging about 5,000 people. They 
have a fair number of private parties and weddings.  

    
Councilwoman Suttles noted that they also hosted the Prescott Senior 
Olympics. Mr. Pastore said that they do an equestrian event at the grounds.   

    
Councilman Lamerson asked if the $400,000 came out of their individual 
pockets or the pockets of the rodeo association. Mr. Pastore said that it was 
through Prescott Frontier Days which is a non profit organization.  Although, 
he said, in 1984 they risked not being able to afford a rodeo and it was his 
understanding that people signed their houses as collateral. People tend to 
dig deep when required. 

 
Councilman Lamerson said that there was an earlier presentation on tourism 
and those core values of a community and the brand of a community. Maybe 
they should take better care of things they already have in a community and 
not go out and buy new things. He appreciated the presentation. 

    
Councilwoman Lopas thanked him and said when the City of Prescott 
acquired the rodeo grounds they had not done a great job of a master plan. 
She thinks that the Prescott Frontier Days did a great job in bringing people 
in. She would like to see the City work on a plan or direction to keep them 
going forward.   

    
Mr. Pastore said that they developed a committee when the City first took 
over the grounds to work on a master plan, but they were asked to hold off. 
They have resurrected that and are in the process of finalizing the business 
plans and long range planning. They will try and get costs associated with it. 
There are a fair amount of repairs still needed. There are also ways to 
increase the use of the grounds. 

    
Mayor Wilson said that he had talked to Mr. Pastore two years ago about 
doing a business plan and attended their retreat. The engineering study the 
City did on the rodeo grounds turned up significant challenges to rehabilitate 
the current grandstands. The amount of money was in the millions. It raised 
the question of whether they wanted to patch up what they had or take a new 
look. That needed to be factored into any new business plans. He does not 
think the rodeo itself is going to generate the money on its own. 



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 8 
 
 

Mr. Pastore said that this was a partnership. They know that everything they 
have ever heard on tourism is that history and culture are major components 
of any attraction. They are the only ones that can claim The World’s Oldest 
Rodeo. They are trying to exploit that to the extent that they can. The history 
of the grounds is a big factor.  

    
Mayor Wilson thanked them and recognized all of the Board members. 

 
C.   Introduction and reception for new logo for the Prescott: The Arizona 

Centennial City Committee.     
     

Barbara Gilliss introduced the official City of Prescott centennial logo.   She 
introduced Jaques LaLiberte and Heather Seman, who represented her 
husband, Mark Seman, who designed the logo. 
  
The logo is a representation of the Arizona flag, Thumb Butte and the motto 
– Prescott, where it all began. They will be asking Gary Kidd to help them 
register it with the Secretary of State.  

     
Ms. Gilliss said that the 100th birthday is February 14, 2012. Following the 
State’s lead, the official celebration begins in February of 2011 and goes 
through February of 2012.  There have been many people who said if they 
stop at 2012 they have eliminated most of the centennial year. Even the 
State is loosening up. The committee in Prescott will continue to support any 
event or activity that they have in Prescott through 2012. 

 
She asked them to look for the logo and consider being part of the centennial 
and put on some type of events. They are accumulating a media promotions 
group who will be supporting that effort to call attention to those events and 
organizations. They will bring people to Prescott to get the community people 
to be more knowledgeable and to enjoy the State and to encourage people 
outside the state to come and play with them.   

    
She presented a certificate to 3D Intelligence for their logo design. Nancy 
Burgess gave them a plaque to thank them for getting the committee started. 

 
III. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
 A. Adoption of Ordinance No. 4722-1019 – An ordinance of the Mayor and 

Council of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, authorizing the 
purchase of utility easements from German Millan-C and Maria Millan, 
Deborah A. Parke-Dellisanti, and Penny W. Celmins for the Big Chino Water 
Ranch Project; authorizing the Mayor and staff to execute any and all 



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 9 
 

all documents to effectuate said purchases; and declaring an emergency. 
    

Mr. Holt introduced the item stating that the easements were necessary for the 
construction of the pipeline. On approval of the Ordinance, 13 of the 125 
easements will have been acquired. The total amount required for the 
acquisitions is $21,711 plus closing costs estimated at $200 to $1000 each, per 
transaction. Funding is available for the easements pursuant to the agreement 
with Prescott Valley. There will be cost participation for the acquisition. The City 
of Prescott’s share is estimated at $11,745.65, the Town of Prescott Valley’s 
share is $9,965.35. They asked that the emergency clause be included in the 
ordinance. 

    
Councilwoman Suttles asked to see where the property was located.  She 
asked if they could work something out with the County concerning the Big 
Chino Road instead of buying the three pieces of property. 

 
Mr. Holt said that the location of the three properties is further back toward 
Paulden; he did not believe that they are along the Big Chino Road that is being 
contested with Yavapai County. His understanding of the issues related to the 
lawsuit for the declaration of Big Chino Road being declared a public right of 
way for ingress and egress is for the segment beyond this location. He was not 
aware of the disposition of that lawsuit and does not know that it would have 
any specific relevance to the City of Prescott, unless there were utility 
easements as a part of that action. He believes that the property owners who 
were bringing that action were attempting to acquire public transportation right 
of way for that roadway rather than creating a utility portal.    

      
Councilwoman Suttles said she would like the item pulled off the Consent 
Agenda and maybe get something tighter for them to look at. She knows it is a 
slow process to get easements. If there is any possible way to work that out 
with the County, it would save them money. 

    
Councilman Lamerson asked if they were just buying the right to use the 
property, but not the property. Mr. Holt said that was correct and that they were 
obtaining the easements to use the property for the utility corridor. 

 
Councilman Lamerson said that he would assume that not all the costs 
relationships would be the same because there are different types of property. 
Mr. Holt said that was a fair statement.    
 
Councilman Lamerson asked what the 24% related to distance-wise in relation 
to the total number of things they were trying to accomplish. Mr. Holt said that 
he can get the distance. He was calculating the percentage in terms of the total 
number of easements.    

    



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 10 
 

Councilman Lamerson said that he could relate to 125 versus 30, but asked 
how many miles had been acquired as opposed to how many miles they 
actually needed.  

    
Councilman Luzius asked if they were waiting for a final decision from the 
Arizona Department of Water Resources. Mr. Holt said that by the end of the 
month, they should have a final determination from the Arizona Department of 
Water Resources with respect to the quantity of water the City is entitled to. 

 
Councilman Luzius asked if once they received that determination, the lawsuits 
would go away. Mr. Holt said that he had no way of knowing. 

 
Councilman Luzius said that there would still be a chance that they will have 
lawsuits with the Center for Biological Diversity and the Salt River Project.    He 
asked why the City would continue purchasing rights of way if they were not 
certain that the lawsuits would go away. He asked what they would do with the 
rights of way if they were not allowed to use the pipeline. 

 
Mr. Holt said that they were acquiring right of way based on direction from the 
City Council. The acquisition of the easement is critical to the project. They are 
confident that the project will go forward. The easements are less expensive 
now than they will be in the future. They have been involved in this process for 
a number of months and think it is the correct process. 

 
Councilman Luzius said he appreciated that the item was pulled off the agenda 
by Councilwoman Suttles. 

   
Michael Peters, 640 West Lee Blvd., asked what the legal application or 
ramification of Proposition 401 was and the continual spending of funds or 
acquisition of easements, continual spending of legal fees now that it has 
passed. 

    
Mayor Wilson said that he thought the real question was, when Proposition 401 
would go into effect. Mr. Kidd said that he thought that it would be 30 days after 
the adoption. They will be meeting Wednesday to do the ordinance on that, but 
there is no effect at this time. There is an overall implication, if project costs are 
$40 million or more, that would have to go to voters. Right now it does not affect 
that ceiling.  As they get closer to the ceiling, there will be an effect. 

   
Mr. Peters asked how many items they have to keep acquiring to reach the 
costs. Factoring in the acquisition of easements and pumping station, it will 
easily exceed the $40 million limitation imposed. It seems like they are trying to 
go through the back door spending their money in advance so they can avoid 
adding that to the accounting process.   



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 11 
 
 

Mayor Wilson said that Mr. Kidd is going to meet Wednesday on the issues. Mr. 
Kidd said that it will probably be a retroactive effect as to prior expenditures. 
That may not be counted. But, if it were the threshold is $40 million. It may be 
more of a policy issue than a legal one until they get to the $40million. 

   
Mr. Peters said that they were talking about the Public Private Partnership as a 
possible method of payment and asked if the 401 limitation would be applicable 
legally to entering into a Private Public Partnership.  

 
Mayor Wilson said that there are a hundred different ways to do Public Private 
Partnerships and one way that would avoid 401. It depends on the disposition 
of City Council if it applies or not. 
 
Mr. Peters asked if what the Mayor was saying is that the Council would make 
an intentional disregard of the application for 401. Mayor Wilson said that he did 
not say that, he said that there were 100 different ways to do it and there is one 
way that avoids it completely. He could not predict what the Council would do. 

 
Mr. Peters said that he knows that the Council and the Mayor would certainly 
not disregard a passage of 401. 

    
Councilman Lamerson asked if the purchase of the ranch was tabulated in 
Proposition 401. Mr. Kidd said that it was a statement of interpretation and a fair 
interpretation. Councilman Lamerson said that without the ranch, they would not 
have the pipeline and they would not have the spot to pump the water. 

 
Mr. Kidd said that one of the things that everyone is asking is if there will be a 
new charter amendment and if it will have some different effects. Some of the 
questions being asked are broad sweeping things. Those are issues to be 
addressed individually on a case by case basis. It is the same thing with the 
Public Private Partnership. It is hard to give an opinion on a speculated issue. 
Perhaps the $25 million is included, but the question is whether charter 
amendments apply retroactively. 

 
Councilman Lamerson suggested that they get some clarification on things. It is 
important from policy perspective and a prioritization of expenditures of public 
money that they may not be accumulating $40 million by buying easements 
here and there, they may be slapped in the backend after finding out that they 
were responsible to have done this by a voter passed initiative. Mr. Kidd said 
that he agreed that it was a legal issue.  

 



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 12 
 

Councilman Lamerson said that he would like to know that before spending any 
more money. 

     
Councilman Bell said that it seemed that they were putting the cart before the 
horse. He remembered the proponents of 401 said it was not directed at the 
pipeline. Already the Council is bringing it in to the pipeline. He said that it 
requires a vote of the people before it would even be an issue. 

 
Councilman Lamerson said that the issue is on any single project with an 
accumulation of $40 million. This single project is either retroactive or not.   
Before he votes to spend another nickel, he wants to know if the project is 
subject to 401. Councilman Bell said that it requires a vote of the people. 
Councilman Lamerson said that this project may not be subject to 401. 

    
Leslie Hoy, 1880 Coyote Road, said that 66% of the voters voted in Proposition 
401, because they want to have more control over the expenditure of their 
money. They want to be able to vote on large projects.  She said she was 
amazed to listen to the argument which seemed to leave out the fact that there 
are voters in the audience, watching on TV, who want to know that the Council 
is responding to what they have just told them a few weeks ago. 

 
 B. Amendment to contracts for easement acquisition services for the Big Chino 

Water Delivery System—1) Yavapai Title in the amount of $60,000.00; 2) Tierra 
Right of Way Services in the amount of $55,500.00; 3) Universal Field Services 
in the amount of $73,080.00; and 4) Briggs Appraisal & Consulting in the 
amount of $23,800.00. 

    
Mr. Holt introduced the item. He said that the four contracts were structured on 
a per contract basis and requested that they be amended to enable completion 
of the easement acquisition phase. Funding is available for the contract in the 
fiscal year 2010 budget, pursuant to the Intergovernmental Agreement with the 
Town of Prescott Valley. There would be cost participation on these items. The 
City’s portion would total $114,879.58; the Town of Prescott Valley would be 
$97,482.42. 

    
Councilman Bell said that he believed the same arguments that applied to the 
last argument applied to this. He suggested this not be on the consent agenda. 

    
Councilman Lamerson said that it goes back to things they have had recently 
with underground utilities. He does not understand how they would not know, 
on properties, prior to a projected cost association, that the easements 
necessary were not available to them because the easements were only limited 
roads. They counted on acquisition of certain installations only to find out they 
could not because they are for roads only. He is glad that it is not on the 



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 13 
 

the consent agenda.  
    

Howard Mechanic, 309 Bloom Place, said the question comes up about the 
probability that the public will approve/disapprove whatever project is brought to 
the public. It has not been shown by anyone that there would not be a public 
vote. If the public votes on the project, even if the City Council supports the 
project, he asked why they would want to spend money on something they 
could do later, if the public approves it. If the public disapproves the project, 
they have just wasted money. He asked if there was a problem to wait a year. 
Mayor Wilson said that they have the money and people willing to give it to 
them. It will be more expensive in a year. 

 
Mr. Mechanic said that he believed it was risking taxpayer’s funds on something 
that may be worthless. The reason does not override the risk.   He said that the 
Mayor told the public that there was one method to bypass the initiative and 
asked him to explain. 

 
Mayor Wilson said that it was the Vidler approach.  He does not have one half 
hour to explain that to the public. Mr. Holt explained that it was spelled V-I-D-L-
E-R and was the name of a company that had made a proposal and it was 
public information. 

 
Councilwoman Suttles said that they had a partnership in this project. The 401 
initiative was for the City of Prescott. Mr. Mechanic’s interest is saving the City 
of Prescott. She asked what happens to Prescott Valley in the agreement.  She 
asked how long the partnership had been going. Mr. Holt said that it began in 
2004. 
 
Councilwoman Suttles asked what Mr. Mechanic suggested they do with their 
partner. Mr. Mechanic said that it is not about what the Council should do with 
their partner, it is about what the public can do to the deal. The public has a 
right to vote the deal down. Any contract the City entered into with Prescott 
Valley is covered by the State constitution. The people do have a right to vote 
on the project. If the people vote to stop the project, Prescott Valley will have to 
consider their options. They cannot sue the public of the City of Prescott by 
turning down a contract. 

 
Councilwoman Suttles said that it was how 401 came up, it was the City of 
Prescott having to deal with it, not the partner that they have had for the last five 
years. Mr. Mechanic said that it was a City of Prescott project, which has a 
Junior Partner. Under state law, the City of Prescott was given rights to get 
water from the Big Chino Area. Prescott Valley was not given any water. He is 
not debating what is good or bad about the contract with Prescott Valley, 
although there are a lot of bad things in the contract. The question being 
brought up is what happens to Prescott Valley if the public turns down a specific 
proposal for the Big Chino. His understanding is that Prescott Valley does not 



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 14 
 

does not have the right to sue the public of Prescott that voted against this 
because the public has a right to do that. 

 
Mr. Kidd said that they are way off of the agenda, but Prescott Valley could sue 
them. Mr. Mechanic was questioning on what grounds they could sue the 
public. Mayor Wilson said that Mr. Kidd cannot answer the question in 30 
seconds. 

    
Councilman Lamerson said he would like clarification with regards to a 
contractual agreement that the have entered into prior to whether a City applied 
or a voter applied initiative. He would like the clarification from the Attorney 
General or the Legislative Counsel General with regard to whether this project 
that they started is subject to a proposition passed subsequent to it. Otherwise 
they are arguing about something that they may not be able to accomplish, 
regardless. When they bought the ranch, the idea was to sustain the water for 
the City of Prescott. He wants to know if the ranch purchase and their 
contractual agreement with Prescott Valley are subject to 401. 

    
Councilwoman Lopas said that she did not like things on the agenda when they 
have questions. She cannot vote on something without those answers. She 
does not want to waste the taxpayers’ dollars. If they do not have the answers 
by next week, she does not want to vote on these. 

 
Mr. Norwood said that since they have questions, they may want to table this, 
whether it is for two weeks or a month so they can get necessary legal opinions. 

 
Mayor Wilson asked if there was any opposition to tabling the item. The only 
one opposed to tabling was Councilman Luzius so the Mayor said the two items 
would be tabled until they had all the answers. 

  
Mr. Peters said that under the Intergovernmental Agreement that Prescott has 
with Prescott Valley, there is a contractual provision that if it is an impossibility of 
performing for Prescott, it would nullify the agreement. That may be the remedy 
for 401 if a vote has to be taken to the public. 

    
Councilman Roecker said that he wants the public to know that all expenditures 
on the Big Chino Pipeline have been public. Anything that has happened in the 
past has all been made public, any future expenditures will be made public, an 
insinuation to the contrary is not correct. If they do this Vidler thing, all of that 
would be made public. They will comply with Proposition 401 as required by 
law. He asked that they not get a false impression that something is going on 
that is not. 

 C. Adoption of Resolution No. 3996-1026 – A resolution of the Mayor and Council 
of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, authorizing the City of Prescott 
to enter into a Procedural Pre-annexation Agreement with James Deep Well 



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 15 
 

Deep Well Ranches #1 and #2, and authorizing the Mayor and staff to take any 
and all steps necessary to accomplish the above. 

    
Craig McConnell said that the Deep Well Ranch #1 and #2 are the legal entity 
with which the City would be contracting. A procedural pre-annexation 
agreement is not an agreement to annex property. It is the procedure that the 
parties to the agreement would follow in the event of subsequent annexations. 
This item lays the groundwork for future annexation into the City of up to 1900 
acres of Deep Well Ranch Property located west of the airport area and to 
situate this area. The secondary address by this agreement is settlement of an 
obligation of the City to provide water to Deep Well Ranch. This was 
established by a 1967 grant of easement for the City’s 18 inch water pipeline.  
This is one of the connections from Chino Valley to Prescott. The easement 
agreement was made in exchange for making water available to the Deep Well 
Ranch. The Deep Well Ranch was represented by Mr. Lutey. 

   
Councilman Lamerson said that the County has zoning units. He asked what 
the number would be in relationship to what they owe. He said that County 
zoning equals X amount per acre. Mr. McConnell said one unit per two acres. 

 
Councilman Lamerson said that for them to be able to develop their land at 
that time, the City would owe them water accumulative of that plus 
commercial opportunity. 
    
Mr. Kidd said that he called the County Zoning Department and this predates 
the Zoning Code by a year or two. There are two different arguments; one is 
rural at that point. Things that were being built in the County were being built 
at 10,000 square foot lots. Councilman Lamerson said that it could be an 
open door policy to water. Mr. Kidd said that it could be 10,000 square foot 
lot or base it on the natural character of the area. Zoning did not apply at that 
point. 
    
Mr. McConnell added that it points out why a negotiation was necessary. 
They are talking about an easement in 1967. There was no zoning code and 
things have changed. It is anyone’s guess on what would have been allowed 
and what the water demand might have been. 
 
Councilman Lamerson said that it sounds like they had the obligation in 1967 
and unless the laws have changed; they are bound by a contract. 
 
Mr. McConnell said that on November 25, 2008, Council approved the City-
initiated West Airport Area General Plan Major Amendment.  
 



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 16 
 

The amendment followed formulation of a conceptual land use plan in 
concert with Deep Well Ranch and the Arizona State Land Department.  The 
agreement with Deep Well Ranch being discussed directly implements both 
the Council's policy goal of a proactive airport area annexation, and the City's 
General Plan approved by voters in 2004 from which that goal arose. 

 
City planning for the eventual resumption of quality growth in proximity to the 
airport has extended well beyond the West Airport Area General Plan Major 
Amendment, to facilitate and streamline future annexation and development 
applications. 
 
(1) Airport Area Transportation Plan (June 2009) to identify the locations 

and classes of streets, existing and future, needed to serve this area 
directly as well as regional traffic.  

  
(2) Water and sewer master plans (July 2009) for the West Airport 

Annexation Area, linked to the City-wide Water and Sewer Models, 
delineating how services will be provided.   

   
He said that the easement was granted by James/Deep Well Ranch for the 
City's 18" Chino Valley to Prescott transmission pipeline.  
 
The City is obligated to provide two (2) taps on its 18" Chino Valley to 
Prescott high pressure water transmission pipeline, each with pressure 
reducing equipment and a 6" pipe to deliver water to Deep Well Ranch at not 
more than 75 psi.   
 
This easement was previously mentioned in conjunction with a separate, 
similar grant involving Deep Well Ranch property in Chino Valley, for which 
the Council approved an agreement on December 9, 2008.   
 
Both of these easements were found during a search of public records 
occasioned by settlement of a James family estate. Following the December 
2008 agreement approval, the City conducted its own search, confirming that 
the 1967 easement described above was the only other one pertaining to the 
City's three (36", 18" and 12") transmission pipelines.   

 
Mr. McConnell said that the total quantity which could be supplied by the two 
6" taps is enormous, ranging from 4,400 acre-feet/year at 75 psi to 3,600 
acre-feet/year at 15 psi.  
 
Recognizing the limitations of the City's Water Portfolio, Deep Well Ranch 
has agreed to the following settlement quantities which are identified in the 
Agreement: 



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 17 
 
 

a. First Increment of 450 acre-feet upon approval of the agreement 
 
b.  Second Increment of 500 acre-feet upon final approval by ADWR of 

the 2008 Draft Decision and Order for Prescott's Application for 
Modification of Assured Water Supply, and after resolution of any 
related appeals900 acre-feet/year 

 
c. Third Increment, an additional minimum quantity from the Big Chino 

Project when online (from the City 54% project share currently 
estimated at 4,364 acre-feet) 

 
The First and Second increments comprise 22-26% of the aforementioned 
range of 4,400 to 3,600 acre-feet/year for the two taps identified by the 
easement. 
 
He said that it is important to point out that a considerable portion of the 
1,393 acre-feet of "Alternate Water" identified in the ADWR 2008 Draft 
Decision and Order pending issuance has been anticipated to be allocated to 
major annexations. This Agreement can be viewed as accomplishing just 
that. 

 
Attachment 5 demonstrates how the settlement quantities of the First and 
Second Increments will be accommodated from the City's Alternate Water 
Portfolio. As mentioned, the Third Increment is dependent upon the delivery 
of Big Chino Project water into the Prescott Active Management Area. 

 
As indicated by Attachment 5, the projected availability after this settlement 
and ADWR approval is 825 acre-feet, plus any unallocated balance from the 
287 acre-feet currently remaining within the 2006-2010 Water Management 
Budget. 
 
To provide additional perspective, with estimated build out water demand of 
the West Airport Annexation Area in the range of 3,000 - 5,000 acre-feet, 
depending upon actual development density, the settlement quantity will 
provide 50% or less of this build out demand. 

 
Mr. McConnell said that the Agreement contemplates incremental 
annexations triggered by market demand. Each such incremental annexation 
will involve a separate development agreement addressing infrastructure, 
and annexation ordinance in compliance with all applicable state and local 
requirements, including Proposition 400 (November 2005). 

 



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 18 
 

He said that, in summary, the Agreement may be viewed as initiating a long 
term, "win-win" partnership with Deep Well Ranch whereby lands are brought 
into the City in an orderly manner for quality development, generating 
extensive beneficial economic activity; and water made available by the 
settlement is used on these annexed lands, with the additional value of return 
flow to the City's treatment plant, and recharge.  
 
Councilman Lamerson said that he appreciated Deep Well Ranch. He 
appreciated them coming to the table and negotiating with the City of 
Prescott to resolve this issue. Understanding what the water situation is, the 
two increments of water allocation, he presumes neither are solely 
dependent on whether the City imports water from the Big Chino Water 
Ranch. Also, where the Deep Well Ranch is, in proximity to the General Plan, 
over 75% of the citizens that take the time to vote approve; that is what the 
Citizens wanted. They wanted that land into the City of Prescott. 

 
Mr. McConnell said that with respect to the sources of water, there are two 
types of water. There are three increments consisting of two types. Increment 1 
is a first increment of 450 acre feet. Upon execution of the agreement would be 
made available to Deep Well Ranch from alternate water that is not imported 
water. The second is an additional 500 acre feet.  That second increment, 
according to agreement, is also alternate water.   Attachment 5 indicates how 
the first and second increments totaling 950 can and would be provided in the 
event the agreement is approved.   

 
  The third increment is Big Chino Water of 900 acre feet. It would only be 

provided in the event that the Big Chino project is constructed and is on line. If 
not constructed, that increment goes away. 

 
     The second topic was the City’s General Plan. It was approved by the voters 

and actually did not specify these indicated land uses. If they look at the 
General Plan, the land uses for large tracts were primarily east of the airport. 
This area was indicated, by that General Plan amendment as ranching and 
conservation. The reason is Deep Well Ranch and the City were not at the table 
discussing annexation and development back then. A lot can change between 
1967 and today, and also since the General Plan was approved by the voters, 
and this is an example of that. Last year in November when they were at the 
table, they said they should look at a major amendment to the General Plan and 
that process produced this amendment. 

 
Councilman Lamerson said that it clarifies that it was contemplated that the land 
would be in the City. Mr. McConnell said that the triangle certainly was. 

    



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 19 
 

Councilman Lamerson asked if something obstructs the ability of the City and 
viability of the City to get the water from the Big Chino, what level of water they 
had in the alternative portfolio at this time, provided everything goes through 
with the Arizona Department of Water Resources. 
 
Mr. McConnell said that was addressed by attachment 5 and the answer is that 
when they have the additional alternative water, that they have  already 
requested, and after the City has signed this agreement and made 950 acre 
feet available, they would still have 800 plus whatever balance is unallocated 
between now and then. They should still have 1,000 acre feet left after the 
agreement is signed and the water is made available. He said that 1,000 acre 
feet was the budget for 5 years; 1,000 acre feet in 3000 houses. 

 
Councilman Lamerson said that if they have a problem with Big Chino Water 
and go forward with this commitment of 950 acre feet, he understands that they 
have about 800 acre feet left. 

 
Mr. McConnell answered that after all is said and done. If there is no Big Chino 
project, they will still have around 1,000 acre feet. This agreement is not 
contingent upon the availability or approval of importation of water from the Big 
Chino Project. 

   
Mayor Wilson wanted to clarify that increment two out of three is also contingent 
on a final decision order of the Arizona Department of Water Resources. But 
that is the uncontested portion of the agreement.   
 
Mr. McConnell said that the 500 acre feet of increment 2 in the agreement is not 
made available if and until any and all challenges to the decision order are 
cleared. 

    
Councilman Luzius said that this was pre-annexation agreement. The 
easement shown from 1967 clearly indicates that the City owes them some kind 
of water. He asked what happens if they do all of this and they do not annex, if 
they would still owe them the water. Mr. McConnell said yes. The agreement 
was in 1967 when the property was unincorporated. It is still outside the City 
limits. It points out the importance of working cooperatively with a willing partner 
to enter into a pre annexation agreement. The intent is a mutual interest in 
annexation. 

 
Councilman Luzius said that besides the fact that the City owes them the water. 
If they can agree that they will annex in, then it is a win-win, but either way, the 
City still owes them the water. He would like to see them annex. 

    
Leslie Hoy, 1880 Coyote Road, thanked the departing members of the Council 
and Mayor Wilson.    

 



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 20 
 

She noted that in the agreement where it says that it is a procedural pre-
annexation agreement, she was wondering what that is in light of page 8 12D 
where it says – this is intended to be a Development Agreement within the 
meaning of ARS 9-500.05. Mayor Wilson said that it was a good faith 
agreement; it is not a binding agreement. 

 
Ms. Hoy also said on page 2 of the agreement section J, she wanted to have 
that explained. Mayor Wilson said the 1967 agreement establishes the 
obligation for them to provide water; also, the City would like to have them 
annexed but it is not guaranteed. 

 
Ms. Hoy said that on page 3, under initiation of annexation, it read “In 
recognition of the benefits….,” she asked what the Council resolution was.   
Mayor Wilson said that it had to do with the amount of fees they charged.   It 
was a significant amount of money they have decided to wave because there is 
a benefit of bringing this land in, especially regarding the effluent they can 
recharge.   
 
Ms. Hoy asked how much that would be. Mr. McConnell said that the fees 
would depend on the size of the annexation. Also, there is a provision in the 
resolution which authorizes the Council to waive the fees whenever they 
determine it is in the City’s best interest. The point is that the agreement 
provides for City-initiated annexations. Deep Well Ranch is willing to discuss 
annexations upon City request. 

 
Mayor Wilson said that the question is a little hard to answer because they 
expect incremental annexations. The Resolution is on line on the City site. Mr. 
McConnell said that he could provide a copy after the meeting. 

 
  Mr. Mechanic, 309 Bloom Place, said that one issue that came up; regarding 

the 900 acre feet agreement, if the Big Chino Water Ranch project is on line, it 
was stated that this is not free water. They are entitled to the availability of 
water, but the implication is that they are paying for the full cost. The agreement 
does not state that, he wanted to make it clear so the Council and public 
understand. There is no agreement to pay for the cost of the water. The 900 
acre feet are approximately 20% of the expected water from the Big Chino 
Water project.  He asked if Deep Well was guaranteeing 20% of the Big Chino 
project. Mayor Wilson said that they are going to pay impact fees and water 
usage fees.   

 
Mr. Mechanic said that in the past impact fees have lagged behind the actual 
costs to the City. In fact, road impact fees have not been looked at in ten years. 
It is a fraction of the cost to provide roads for new development.  He asked that 
when these homes are built that the impact fees will cover the costs of the Big 
Chino project.   



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 21 
 

Mayor Wilson answered that they have a Council policy to look at those fees 
every two years. They have another problem with the State of Arizona that 
passed a moratorium on impact fees. They have to deal with what they have. 
Mr. Mechanic said that he disagreed with him. There is a way to have annexed 
areas guarantee their fair share of the Big Chino project. 

    
Mr. Mechanic said that it has the word, Big Chino, in the agreement. If the state 
freezes impact fees, the City cannot collect the full costs. If the costs go up, the 
City cannot cover the costs under this agreement. There is nothing in the 
agreement to cover the costs. He said that the Mayor was trying to say they 
look at the impact fees every two years. The Council has refused to raise 
impact fees on many occasions. He expects the incoming Council to be even 
more dismal in that regard. He wants the public and Council to understand that 
impact fees do not cover the costs. 

    
Mr. McConnell said that the topic is applicability of impact fees and water rates 
to the development which may occur. There are provisions in the agreement 
which address this. Paragraph 10 on page 5 says that potable water is subject 
to and in accordance with adopted water management policies, codes and 
regulations, including, where applicable, approval of water service agreements. 
For the Fann Annexation, there was a detailed Water Service Agreement that 
indicated that all impact fee, rates, fees, etc. were applicable. He also 
suggested they read page 7of the agreement. 

 
He said that t is a fact that the City of Prescott can only apply those impact fees, 
rates, charges which are enabled by state law and approved by Council. This 
agreement contemplates the payment in the event of development of all such 
fees. There is no free ride. 

    
Councilman Lamerson asked if it applied whether or not it is within the City. He 
said that the City owes the Deep Well water by contract. Mr. McConnell said 
that, as an example, the City has a retail water business in Chino Valley. It was 
acquired by the City’s acquisition of the Chino Valley Irrigation District. When a 
property connects to the system in Chino Valley, in another town, they pay the 
City of Prescott’s impact fee. 
 
Councilman Luzius said that he wanted this item off of the Consent Agenda.   

 
D. Adoption of Resolution No. 3997-1027 – A resolution of the Mayor and Council 

of the City of Prescott, Yavapai County, Arizona, authorizing the City of Prescott 
to enter into an Agreement with the Arizona Department of Fire, Building and 
Life Safety, Office of Manufactured Housing, to enforce installation standards of 
factory-built buildings and manufactured homes, and authorizing the Mayor and 
staff to take any and all steps necessary to accomplish the above. 

    



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 22 
 

Mr. Guice said that this was a renewal of an agreement they have had with the 
Office of Manufactured Housing for the last 25 plus years. 

 
E. Approval of minutes of the Prescott City Council Joint Study Session/Special 

Meeting of November 6, 2009, the Special Meeting (in their capacity as 
members of Regional Association of Local Governments), the Regular Voting 
Meeting of November 10, 2009, and the Study Session of November 17, 
2009. 

  
  No changes were made. 
 

F. Selection of items to be placed on the Regular Voting Meeting Agenda of 
November 24, 2009. 

 
Councilman Bell said on the Consent Agenda would be items D and E.  He 
said that items A and B had been tabled. Items C was pulled from the 
Consent Agenda. 

 
  STATEMENT by Outgoing Councilman Bob Roecker. 

    
Councilman Roecker said that he was very excited about the new Council 
coming on; he thought that they would do well. Councilman Roecker thanked 
his family for all they had put up with. He thanked the staff and said that he 
had never worked with a group of people with a higher level of integrity and 
said that it had been a pleasure to be on Council. Most of all, he thanked the 
citizens for allowing him to serve for the last eight years. It has been a 
humbling thing for him to do. He could never thank them enough for the 
opportunity. 

    
Mr. Norwood said that Mr. Roecker had voted to hire him. Over the 20+ 
years he has worked for 50 or so councilmen and Mr. Roecker is one of the 
best. He has been fair and loyal to the City.  
 
Mayor Wilson mentioned that the City was also losing many water people in 
the City, Jim Holt, Connie Tucker and Councilman Roecker, who had been 
on all of the water committees, and himself. He recommended that 
Councilwoman Suttles, who is taking over some of the responsibility, keep a 
lot of phone numbers in her pocket. 

 
G. PRESENTATION and Resolution of Commendation to Councilman Bob 

Roecker. 
    

.Mayor Wilson read the resolution of commendation and presented it to 
Councilman Roecker. 

    
Councilman Lamerson said that he remembered the early 80’s and late 70’s 



Prescott City Council  
Study Session – November 17, 2009                                                       Page 23 
 

70’s playing softball with Councilman Roecker and said that he had been a 
good friend. He has appreciated serving with him on the City Council.   

 
Councilwoman Lopas thanked him for being a great mentor on the Council 
and said that it had been a pleasure working with him and said that they will 
keep in touch.     

 
Councilwoman Suttles said that once a Councilman, always a Councilman. 
She really enjoyed the last six years and it had been an experience. She 
asked him not to give any information to the incoming Council that has to 
share the office. His service to the community has been tremendously 
respected. He always tried to be the most balanced. She wished him the best 
and asked him to please come and visit. 

 
At this time Councilwoman Suttles presented a plaque and piece of art 
depicting the City of Prescott. 

 
Mayor Wilson asked him not to move anywhere because they will start 
negotiating with the Salt River Project as soon as they resolve the law suits, 
and they will call him back.   

 
IV. ADJOURNMENT 
    

There being no further business to be discussed, he Study Session of the Prescott 
City Council held November 17, 2009, adjourned at 5:18 p.m.  

 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      JACK D. WILSON, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk 
 


